
 1 

MINUTES 
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
February 22, 2012 

5:00 P.M. 
Central Library 

7111 Talbert Avenue 
Huntington Beach, CA 92648 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT
 

: Croteau, Cox, Daugherty, Lewis, Moore and Vogel 

MEMBERS ABSENT
 

: Miles 

STAFF PRESENT
 

: Beverage, Blassingame 

COUNCIL LIAISONS PRESENT
 

:  None 

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENDATIONS
 

:  

Ms. Beverage announced that Marcos Cerda was selected to receive the Melville Dewey Employee 
Recognition Award for the month of January. He was recognized specifically for dealing with a room 
rental issue on a Saturday, going above and beyond! Traditionally, she added, Marcos always goes one 
step beyond what his position requires in order to provide excellent customer service to every library 
patron he encounters. 
 
MINUTES
 

:  January 18, 2012 

CHAIR CROTEAU ENTERTAINED A MOTION TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES AS SUBMITTED: 
SO MOVED BY MR. LEWIS, AND SO SECONDED BY MS. COX. AS NONE WERE OPPOSED, 
THE MINUTES OF JANUARY 18, 2012 WERE ACCEPTED. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENTS
 

:  

None. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
 

:  

Ms. Blassingame asked the Chair and Vice-Chair to sign minutes of past meetings. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

: 

F-1. 
 

Technology at the Library. 

Ms. Beverage reported that the computer lab time management software upgrade is almost completely 
installed and that the new copier/printer machines are working well.  She added that patrons are 
currently unable to print pages from the online databases, but that the Information Services department 
is working with West Coast Copier to resolve this issue. 
 
Ms. Beverage reported on the status of the Self Service Checkout machines, explaining that Information 
Services is addressing an error in the checkout program that continues to block patrons from borrowing 



 2 

materials, although it does not appear to be related to overdue fines as previously thought.  She added 
that utilization of the machines is slowly rising, and staff is trained to provide instruction to first-time 
patron users. 
 
Ms. Beverage provided an overview of eBooks, beginning with the eBook patron workshops that were 
well-attended and that another set of workshops are in development, along with eReader specific 
instructional workshops.   
 
Ms. Beverage reported that a recent decision by Penguin adds them to the growing list of major 
publishers no longer working with the company, Overdrive, to provide eBooks to libraries.  She 
explained that the publishers are working to develop a more desirable library-sharing model.  Ms. 
Beverage added that this decision will hinder continuing development of the library’s eBook collection.  
 
Mr. Lewis reported on his experience downloading eBooks through the library site, stating that he was 
satisfied with the results.  Chair Croteau asked about the number of titles available on the Kindle, and 
Ms. Beverage explained that there are more titles available to the Ipad and the Nook than for the Kindle 
at this time. 
 
Ms. Beverage reported on the status of the library’s fee-based Computer lab in the Media area, 
explaining that the computers are over 5 years old and revenue is dropping as use declines with the 
increase of laptops, tablets and smartphones.  She added that management is rethinking the space and 
she will keep the Library Board advised.  Ms. Daugherty asked about the security levels on the 
computers in the public lab compared to the security on the computers in the fee-based Media lab. Ms. 
Beverage replied that the Media lab filtering programs are set to a lower filter than the computer labs. 
 
Chair Croteau asked if there were any further questions or comments and, there being none, she moved 
to the next item. 
 
F-2. 
 

City Budget. 

Ms. Beverage reported on the City Budget, first addressing State’s decision to dissolve the 
Redevelopment Agency and the $4.9M impact on the City budget.  She also reported that Mayor Hansen 
is gathering signatures to place a measure on the November ballot to end a property tax assessment that 
provides $4.2M that goes to help pay for some public safety employee pension costs.  Ms. Beverage 
explained that the result of these two issues is the City Manager once again requesting that City 
Department heads provide another budget exercise showing how cuts in each department ($128,000 for 
the library) might make up this potential loss.  She will be providing detail of the impact more cuts will 
have on the staff and the services provided to library patrons. 
 
Mr. Lewis asked when the Measure might appear on the ballot, and Ms. Beverage replied that if Mayor 
Hansen obtains the required number of signatures by May 7, the Measure could appear on the November 
ballot if it is not pulled by proponents. 
 
Chair Croteau asked if there were any further questions or comments and, there being none, she moved 
to the next item. 
 
F-3. 
 

California Library Association. 

Ms. Beverage reported on her attendance at the Public Library Director summit arranged by CLA to 
discuss the statewide impact of the Trigger Bill and a plan of action.  She explained that CLA is working 
with the Public Library Association (PLA) to put money back into the State Budget, and she will let the 



 3 

Library Board know if advocacy is needed.  She added that the Governor is proposing more library and 
literacy funding reductions in the 2012-2013 State Budget.   
 
Ms. Beverage also reported on the CLA project to develop a unifying marketing tool for libraries and to 
identify priorities, such as literacy and digital-content, the Public Library Directors would like the State 
to support. 
 
Chair Croteau asked if there were any further questions or comments and, there being none, she moved 
to the next item. 
 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 

Ms. Blassingame distributed copies of the Children’s Calendar of Events, the Oak View branch literacy 
and programs summary and the information on the Aquarium fundraising to date. 
 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

Ms. Blassingame distributed Friends of the Library flyers for the upcoming March Authors Luncheon 
featuring Lisa See and explained that although the luncheon is sold out, seats are still available for the 
lecture that follows in the Library Theater. 
 
CALTAC: 
 
Ms. Blassingame polled the Library Board about attending the CALTAC Spring workshop. Mr. Moore 
stated that he is available and interested in attending.  As no other Board members are available, Ms. 
Blassingame will submit the registration and fee for Mr. Moore. 
 

 
LIBRARY BOARD COMMENTS: 

Mr. Lewis asked about the Senior Librarian position. Ms. Beverage explained that the eligibility list is 
being created and that she will have to request permission to conduct the department interviews and hire 
a qualified eligible candidate.  She added that the current issues impacting the Budget may block the 
new hire.  Mr. Lewis asked if Ms. Beverage was pleased with the applicant pool. Ms. Beverage replied 
that the selection of applicants was good considering the revision to the Job Classification to include a 
technological background requirement. 
 

 
STAFF COMMENTS: 

Ms. Beverage reported that she will be bringing to a future meeting for the Library Board’s review a 
police-directed procedure to assist staff in dealing appropriately and effectively with disruptive patrons. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:
 

   

Chair Croteau entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Lewis moved to adjourn the meeting 
and Ms. Cox seconded the motion. There being no more business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
 
 
Betty Croteau 
Chair 


	ROLL CALL:
	MINUTES:  January 18, 2012
	COMMITTEE REPORTS:

